

714

Jr. Colleges - Law +

legislation - Iowa



A SUMMARY CONTAINING

 $\bullet \bullet \bullet$

SPECIFIC SCHOOL LAWS RELATING TO AREA SCHOOLS

STANDARDS FOR AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGES AND AREA VOCATIONAL SCHOOLS

PREPARED BY

AREA SCHOOLS DIVISION DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION STATE OF IOWA



3-930

<u>6100-c7637-8/75</u>

STATE OF IOWA . DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION

GRIMES STATE OFFICE BUILDING . DES MOINES, IOWA 50319

ROBERT D. BENTON, Ed.D., STATE SUPERINTENDENT David H. Bechtel, M. S., Administrative Assistant RICHARD N. SMITH, Ph.D., DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT

DATE: August 20, 1975

TO:

a place to grow

Individuals Receiving Copies of the Publication, <u>Selected School</u> Laws and Standards, (1974)

FROM: Area Schools Division

SUBJECT: Revision of Selected School Laws and Standards, (1974)

The publication, <u>Selected School Laws and Standards</u>, (1974) has been revised to reflect the changes in Chapter 280A that were approved by the First Regular Session of the Sixty-sixth General Assembly. Please note that these revisions are included in a three-page supplement that has been included in the front of this publication. The revisions identified were those reported by the Iowa Legislative Service Bureau in the summary of legislation approved by the First Regular Session of the Sixty-sixth Iowa General Assembly.

Sincerely,

AREA SCHOOLS DIVISION

REVISION OF SELECTED SCHOOL LAWS AND STANDARDS

1974

This information will be required to up-date your copy of the publication, <u>Selected School Laws</u> and Standards (1974). This revision includes the changes in Chapter 280A that were approved by the First Regular Session of the Sixty-sixth General Assembly.

2804.12

280A.12 Governing board. The governing board of a merged area shall be a board of directors composed of one member elected from each director district in the area by the electors of the respective district. Members of the board shall be residents of the district from which elected. Successors shall be chosen at the annual school elections for members whose terms expire on the first Monday in October following such elections. Terms of members of the board of directors shall be three years except that members of the initial board of directors elected at the special election shall determine their respective terms by lot so that the terms of one-third of the members, as hearly as may be, shall expire on the first Monday in October of each succeeding year. Vacancies on the board which occur more than ninety days prior to the next regular school election may be filled at the next regular meeting of the board by appointment by the remaining members of the board. A member so chosen shall be a resident of the district in which the vacancy occurred and shall serve until a member shall be elected pursuant to section sixty-nine point twelve (69.12) of the Code to fill the vacancy for the balance of the unexpired term. A vacancy shall be defined as in section 277.29. No member shall serve on the board of directors who is a member of a board of directors of a local school district or a member of an area education agency board.

Amendment effective July 1, 1975

Changed by House File 700, sec. 136, 66 G.A.(1)

280A.23(2)

2. Change boundaries of director districts in merged areas after each decennial census, or after any change in boundaries of the merged area, to compensate for changes in population if such population changes have taken place, or at any time for the purpose of causing the boundaries of director districts to coincide where feasible, with the boundary lines of election precincts established pursuant to sections forty-nine point three (49.3) through forty-nine point six (49.6), inclusive, of the Code. However, the director districts shall in all cases be of approximately equal population within each merged area.

Changed by House File 700, sec. 137, 66 G.A.(1)

280A.23 (9)

9. Set the salary of the area superintendent. In setting the salary, the board shall consider the salaries of administrators of educational institutions in the merged area and the enrollment of the area school.

Changed by House File 897, sec. 1, 66 G.A.(1)

280A.29

280A.29 Advisory committee (Repealed)

Repealed by Senate File 544, sec. 2, 66 G.A.(1)

280A.30

280A.30 Members terms (Repealed)

Repealed by Senate File 544, sec. 2, 66 G.A.(1)

280A.31

280A.31 Meetings (Repealed)

Repealed by Senate File 544, sec. 2, 66 G.A.(1)

280A.32

280A.32 Advice (Repealed)

Repealed by Senate File 544, sec. 2, 66 G.A.(1)

280A.33 (1)

1. Approval standards, except as hereinafter provided, for area and public community and junior colleges shall be initiated by the area schools branch of the department and submitted to the state board of public instruction and the state board of regents, through the state superintendent of public instruction, for joint consideration and adoption.

Changed by Senate File 544, sec. 1, 66 G.A.(1)

280A.33 (2)

2. Approval standards for area vocational schools and for vocational programs and courses offered by area community colleges shall be initiated by the area schools branch and submitted to the state board of public instruction through the state superintendent of public instruction, for consideration and adoption. No such proposed approval standard shall be adopted by the state board until the standard has been submitted to the advisory committee created by chapter 258 and its recommendations thereon obtained.

Changed by Senate File 544, sec. 1, 66 G.A.(1)

280A.39

2804.39 Combining merged areas-election. Any merged area may combine with any adjacent merged area after a favorable vote by the electors of each of the areas involved. If the boards of directors of two or more merged areas agree to a combination, the question shall be submitted to the electors of each area at a special election to be held on the same day in each area. The special election shall not be held within thirty days of any general election. Prior to the special election, the board of each merged area shall notify the county commiss oner of elections of the county in which the greatest proportion of the merged area's taxable base is located who shall publish notice of the election according to section forty-nine point fifty-three (49.53) of the Code. The two respective county commissioners of elections shall conduct the election pursuant to the provisions of chapters 39 to 53. The votes cast in the election shall be canvassed by the county board of supervisors and the county commissioners of elections who conducted the election shall certify the results to the board of directors of each merged area.

If the vote is favorable in each merged area, the boards of each area shall proceed to transfer the assets, liabilities, and facilities of the areas to the combined merged area, and shall serve as the acting board of the combined merged area until a new board of directors is elected. The acting board shall submit to the state board a plan for redistricting the combined merged area, and upon receiving approval from the state board, shall provide for the election of a director from each new district at the next regular school election. The directors elected from each new district shall determine their terms by lot as provided in section 280A.12. Election of directors for the combined merged area shall follow the procedures established for election of directors of a merged area. A combined merged area shall be subject to all provisions of law and regulations governing merged areas.

Changed by House File 700, sec. 138, 66 G.A.(1)

Your attention is directed to Section 257.10(14) that is reproduced below. Departmental rules are presently being formulated to implement this section of the Code. These rules will have implications for the acquisition and replacement of educational electronic data processing equipment.

257.10(14) Approve, co-ordinate, and supervise the use of electronic data processing by local school districts, area education agencies and merged areas. A committee, consisting of the state superintendent of public instruction, the director of the department of general services, the state comptroller, or their designees, and two persons knowledgeable in the area of administrative-instructional computer systems to be appointed by the governor, shall assist and advise the state board of public instruction in approving, co-ordinating and supervising the use of electronic data processing computers by local school districts, area education agencies and merged areas. The committee shall further inventory current practice and prepare and recommend a state-wide plan for the use of electronic data processing computers in order to prevent the unnecessary proliferation of computers. These recommendations shall be submitted to the general assembly by December 1 of each year. For purposes of this subsection the term "electronic data processing computers" shall refer to equipment having as a component thereof a memory core to store information.

> THE REVISIONS OF CHAPTER 280A WERE IDENTIFIED IN THE PUBLICATION, SUMMARY OF LEGISLATION APPROVED BY THE FIRST REGULAR SESSION OF THE SIXTY-SIXTH IOWA GENERAL ASSEMBLY MEETING IN THE YEAR 1975 ISSUED BY THE IOWA LEGISLATIVE SERVICE BUREAU.

- 3 -

NOTE

6100-c11833-6/75

SELECTED SCHOOL LAWS and STANDARDS

A summary containing

- Specific school laws relating to area schools.
- Standards for area community colleges and area vocational schools.

Prepared by Area Schools Division Department of Public Instruction

State of Iowa 1974

State of Iowa DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION Grimes State Office Building Des Moines, Iowa 50319

STATE BOARD OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION

Muriel I. Shepard, President, Allison T. J. Heronimus, Vice-President, Grundy Center Robert J. Beecher, Creston Jolly Ann Davidson, Clarinda Ronald P. Hallock, West Des Moines Virginia Harper, Fort Madison Robert G. Koons, Clinton Georgia A. Sievers, Avoca John E. van der Linden, Sibley

ADMINISTRATION

Robert D. Benton, State Superintendent, and Executive Officer of the State Board of Public Instruction David H. Bechtel, Administrative Assistant Richard N. Smith, Deputy State Superintendent

Area Schools and Career Education Branch

Wm. M. Baley, Associate Superintendent

Area Schools Division

Charles R. Moench, Director Ken Russell, Chief, Adult Education Robert B. Yeager, Chief, Fiscal Control

Donna Steenhoek, Publication Assistance

PREFACE

The purpose of this publication is to provide a selected summary of: (1) school laws relating to area schools; and (2) standards for area community colleges and area vocational schools.

Part I contains the specific Chapters (280A and 286A, Code of Iowa) which pertain to the area schools. This information is taken from School Laws of Iowa, 1974, prepared by Mr. Larry Bartlett, administrative consultant for Administrative Support Staff, Department of Public Instruction.

Part II contains standards for area community colleges and area vocational schools as set forth in Chapter 5 of the Iowa Departmental Rules.

Part III, the appendix, identifies related chapters of the Code of Iowa, which are referred to in Chapters 280A and 286A.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapter	280A	Area Vocational Schools and Community Colleges
	280A.1	Statement of policy
	280A.2	Definitions
	280A.3	Combination of school systems
	280A.4	Division of county systems
	280A.5	Submission of plan to state board
	280A.6	Formulating plans—cost
	280A.7	Investigation of plan
	280A.8	Approval of plan
	280A.9	Disapproval of plan
	280A.10	Procedure after approval
	280A.11	Procedure of state board
	280A.12	Governing board
	280A.13	Directors of merged area
	280A.14	Expenses prorated
	280A.15	Conduct of elections
	280A.16	Status of merged area
	280A.17	Preparation of budget
	280A 18	Other funds received
	280A.19	Acquisition of sites and buildings
	280A.20	Payment of bonds
	280A.21	Election to incur indebtedness
	280A.22	Additional tax
	280A.23	Authority of area directors
		Area community college
	280A.25	Power of state board
	280A.26	Former community or junior colleges
	280A.27	Area schools branch in department
	280A.28	Repealed by Ch. 1106, sec. 3, 63 G.A.
	280A.29	Advisory committee
		Members terms
		Meetings
		Advice
		Joint action with board of regents
	280A.34	Certain uses of funds prohibited
	280A.35	Limitation on land
		Faculty development
	280A 37	Membership in association of school boards
	2804 38	Lease agreements for space

286A	General Aid to Schools								13
286A.1	Area vocational schools, community and jun	io	r c	ol	leg	es			13
286A.2	Repealed								13
286A.3	Basis of aid-standards for junior colleges .								13
286A.4	Determination								13
286A.5	Information furnished by school district .								13
286A.6	Rules								14
286A.7	Repealed								14
286A.8	General aid to junior or community colleges								14
286A.9	Merged area schools general aid								14
286A.10	Aid paid quarterly								15
286A.11	Plan for allocation of remaining funds								15
286A.12	Uniform accounting system								15

Area Vocational Schools and Community Colleges

5.2	Administration
5.3	Faculty
	Curriculum and evaluation
5.5	Library or learning resource center
	Student services
5.7	Laboratories, shops, equipment and supplies
	Physical plant
	Building and site approval
5.10	Approval procedures
5.11	Progress toward regional accreditation
5.12	Standards for area schools
III. APPENDIX	

AREA SCHOOLS, 280A.1

CHAPTER 280A

AREA VOCATIONAL SCHOOLS AND COMMUNITY COLLEGES

280A.1	Statement of policy.
280A.2	Definitions.
280A.3	Combination of school systems.
280A.4	Division of county systems.
280A.5	Submission of plan to state board.
280A.6	Formulating plans——cost.
280A.7	Investigation of plan.
280A.8	Approval of plan.
280A.9	Disapproval of plan.
280A.10	Procedure after approval.
280A.11	Procedure of state board.
280A.12	Governing board.
280A.13	Directors of merged area.
280A.14	Expenses prorated.
280A.15	Conduct of elections.
280A.16	Status of merged area.
280A.17	Preparation of budget.
280A.18	Other funds received.
280A.19	Acquisition of sites and buildings.
280A.20	Payment of bonds.
	here is the state of the second
	the second se

280A.1 Statement of policy. It is hereby declared to be the policy of the state of Iowa and the purpose of this chapter to provide for the establishment of not more than seventeen areas which shall include all of the area of the state and which may operate either area vocational schools or area community colleges offering to the greatest extent possible, educational opportunities and services in each of the following, when applicable, but not necessarily limited to:

1. The first two years of college work including preprofessional education.

2. Vocational and technical training.

3. Programs for in-service training and retraining of workers.

4. Programs for high school completion for students of post-high school age.

5. Programs for all students of high school age who may best serve themselves by enrolling for vocational and technical training while also enrolled in a local high school, public or private.

6. Student personnel services.

7. Community services.

8. Vocational education for persons who have academic, socio-economic, or other handicaps which prevent succeeding in regular vocational education programs.

9. Training, retraining, and all necessary preparation for productive employment of all citizens.

10. Vocational and technical training for persons who are not enrolled in a high school and who have not completed high school.

280A.21	Election to incur indebtedness.
280A.22	Additional tax.
280A.23	Authority of area directors.
280A.24	Area community college.
280A.25	Power of state board.
280A.26	Former community or junior colleges.
280A.27	Area schools branch in department.
280A.28	Repealed by Ch. 1106, sec. 3, 63 GA.
280A.29	Advisory committee.
280A.30	Members terms.
280A.31	Meetings.
280A.32	Advice.
280A.33	Joint action with board of regents.
280A.34	Certain uses of funds prohibited.
280A.35	Limitation on land.
280A.36	Faculty development.
280A.37	Membership in association of school boards.
280A.38	Lease agreements for space.
280A.39	Combining merged areaselection.
280A.40	Area vocational school attendance center.

It is further declared to be the policy of the state that all of the area of the state shall be in a merged area by July 1, 1971. If any area of this state is not within one of the existing merged areas of this state by April 1, 1971, or is not included in a plan pending before the state board of public instruction under the provisions of this chapter on or before that date, the state board of public instruction shall attach all such areas to an existing merged area or shall form such areas into new merged areas. Such attachment or formation shall become effective by resolution of the board, and by filing notice, if applicable, with the secretary of the school board of the merged areas to which such area is to be attached. Any area included in a merged area plan filed with the state board on or before April 1, 1971, and not becoming a part of a merged area because of the subsequent failure of the plan, shall be attached to an existing merged area by the state board of public instruction. The state board shall, where possible, carry out the provisions of this Act by July 1, 1971, but may defer action as may be necessary. The state board in carrying out the provisions of this Act shall investigate the desires of the residents of the area affected, and obtain the advice and recommendation of the advisory committee. All actions made by the state board shall be accomplished by resolution of the board. Such resolution shall be adopted by roll call vote entered in the minutes of the board and the action of the board shall be final.

At any time before April 1, 1971, any school district not included in a merged area may join any adjacent merged area in the following manner:

1974

280A.1, AREA SCHOOLS

The school district board of directors shall publish notice of the proposal to join a specific adjacent merged area, in a newspaper of general circulation within the school district. The notice shall be published at least twice, no oftener than once a week.

The school district shall become part of the adjacent merged area, as proposed in the notice, thirty days after second publication of the notice, unless a petition requesting an election on the proposal and signed by electors equal to ten percent of those voting in the last regular school election in the district is filed with the school board.

If such a petition is filed, the school board shall submit the question of whether the district shall join the adjacent merged area as proposed, or shall join another adjacent merged area, at the next regular school election, or at a special election. If a special election is called, notice shall be published at least three times, no oftener than once a week, in a newspaper of general circulation within the district.

Upon receiving notification from a school board that it is proceeding under the above provisions to join an adjacent merged area, the state board shall stay its attachment proceedings until the procedures are completed. If a majority of those voting favor joining any adjacent merged area, the state board shall proceed to attach the district to that merged area.

280A.2 Definitions. When used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:

1. "Vocational school" means a publicly supported school which offers as its curriculum or part of its curriculum vocational or technical education, training, or retraining available to persons who have completed or left high school and are preparing to enter the labor market; persons who are attending high school who will benefit from such education or training but who do not have the necessary facilities available in the local high schools; persons who have entered the labor market but are in need of upgrading or learning skills; and persons who due to academic, socio-economic, or other handicaps are prevented from succeeding in regular vocational or technical education programs.

2. "Junior college" means a publicly supported school which offers as its curriculum or part of its curriculum two years of liberal arts, preprofessional, or other instruction partially fulfilling the requirements for a baccalaureate degree but which does not confer any baccalaureate degree.

3. "Community college" means a publicly supported school which offers two years of liberal arts, preprofessional, or other instruction partially fulfilling the requirements for a baccalaureate degree but which does not confer any baccalaureate degree and which offers in whole or in part the curriculum of a vocational school.

4. "Merged area" means an area where two or more county school systems or parts thereof merge resources to establish and operate a vocational school or a community college in the manner provided in this chapter.

5. "Area vocational school" means a vocational school established and operated by a merged area.

6. "Area community college" means a community college established and operated by a merged area.

7. "State board" means the state board of public instruction.

8. "State superintendent" means the state superintendent of public instruction.

9. "Planning board" means any county board of education which is a party to a plan for establishment of an area vocational school or area community college.

10. "Area school" means an area vocational school or area community college established under the provisions of this Act.

280A.3 Combination of school systems. Boards of education of two or more counties are hereby authorized to plan for the merger of county school systems, or parts thereof, for the purpose of providing an area vocational school or area community college. Such plans shall be effectuated only upon approval by the state board and by subsequent concurrent action of the county boards of education at special meetings, called for that purpose, or at the regular July meetings of the county boards. No area which has less than four thousand public and private pupils in grades nine through twelve shall be approved by the state board as a merged area.

280A.4 Division of county systems. Upon recommendation of the county board of education and approval by the state board in an area plan, a county school system may be divided to permit parts of the system to merge with one or more merged areas in establishing an area vocational school or area community college. When division is permitted, the county school system shall be divided along local school district boundaries. No local school district shall be a part of more than one merged area. The county board of education shall be the planning board for any portion of the county school system which is to become a part of a merged area.

280A.5 Submission of plan to state board. Plans formulated for a merged area when submitted to the state board shall include the following:

1. A description of the geographic limits of the proposed area.

2. Total population, population trends, population density, and projected population density of the area.

3. Total school enrollments in grades one through eight within the area.

4. Total school enrollments in grades nine through twelve within the area.

5. Projections of school enrollments within the area.

6. A description of the types of educational offerings and capacities of educational facilities beyond high school existing within the area, or within fifty miles of the center of the area, at the time of submission of plans.

7. Identification of educational programs needed within the area.

8. An evaluation of local interest in and attitude toward establishment of the proposed area vocational school or area community college.

9. An evaluation of the ability of the area to contribute to the financial support of the establishment and operation of the proposed area vocational school or area community college.

10. Estimated number of students within the area who are eligible to attend the proposed area vocational school or area community college.

11. The curriculum intended to be offered in the proposed area vocational school or area community college and assurances that adequate and qualified personnel will be provided to carry on the proposed curriculum and any necessary related services.

12. The location or locations where the proposed area vocational school or area community college is to be constructed or established if such location or locations have been agreed upon. The site or sites of any proposed area vocational school or area community college shall be of sufficient size to provide for adequate future expansion.

13. The boundaries of director districts which shall number not less than five or more than nine if such districts have been agreed upon. Director districts shall be of approximately equal population.

14. When it is intended that one or more existing vocational schools, community colleges, or public junior colleges are to become an integrated part of an area vocational school or area community college, specific information regarding arrangements agreed upon for compensating the local school district or districts which operate or operated any existing school or college.

15. Such additional information as the state board may by administrative rule require.

280A.6 Formulating plans—cost. County boards of education may expend public funds for the purpose of formulating plans for a merged area and may arrive at an equitable distribution of cost, subject to approval of the state board, to be paid by

each participating board.

280A.7 Investigation of plan. Upon receipt of any plan submitted, the state board shall cause the plan to be examined, conduct further investigation of and hearings on the plan if deemed necessary, and evaluate the plan in relation to all vocational schools, community colleges, and junior colleges existing, proposed, or needed throughout the state. The state board may approve or disapprove the plan or may return the plan to the planning boards for modification and resubmission.

280A.8 Approval of plan. When a plan is approved, the state board shall issue an order of the approval, a copy of which shall be sent to each of the respective planning boards. The order shall:

1. Officially designate and classify the area school to be established as an area vocational school or area community college.

2. Describe all territory included in the county school systems which is to be a part of the approved area.

3. Officially designate the location or locations of the area vocational school or area community college. If the plan did not specify a location, the state board shall so determine.

4. Officially designate the boundaries of director districts. If the plan did not specify such boundaries, the state board shall so determine.

280A.9 Disapproval of plan. When a plan is disapproved, a statement of the reasons for such disapproval shall be forwarded to each of the planning boards. Within fifteen calendar days from the date of receiving such statement, the planning boards or their authorized representative may request a hearing by the state board on the disapproved plan. The state board shall grant the hearing within thirty calendar days after receipt of the request. Upon receiving all evidence and arguments presented by the planning boards or their representative, the state board may reaffirm or reconsider its previous action with respect to the disapproved plan or may request the planning boards to modify and resubmit the plan.

280A.10 Procedure after approval. When a plan proposing formation of a merged area is approved by the state board, each county board of education which is a planning board with respect to the approved plan shall:

1. Within thirty calendar days after approval of the plan by the state board, order published, in all official newspapers of the county, notice of intent to form the proposed merged area. The state board shall prescribe by administrative rule the form and content

1974

280A.10, AREA SCHOOLS

of such published notices.

2. Within seventy calendar days after approval of the plan by the state board hold a meeting to accept or reject the merger plan. In the event no decision has been made by a county board of education within seventy days, the county board shall be deemed to have approved the merger plan. The secretaries of the respective boards shall immediately notify the state board of the action taken at the meetings.

280A.11 Procedure of state board. Upon receiving notice that all planning boards have given final approval to the proposal to form a merged area, the state board shall:

1. Officially designate all territory included in the plan approved by the county school systems as a merged area.

2. Direct the county commissioner of elections of the county in which the physical plant facilities of the area vocational school or area community college are to be located to call and conduct a special election to choose the members of the initial governing board of the merged area. If physical plant facilities are to be located in more than one county, the county commissioner of elections of the county in which the school or college administrative offices are to be located shall be responsible for calling and conducting the special election.

280A.12 Governing board. The governing board of a merged area shall be a board of directors composed of one member elected from each director district in the area by the electors of the respective district. Members of the board shall be residents of the district from which elected. Successors shall be chosen at the annual school elections for members whose terms expire on the first Monday in October following such elections. Terms of members of the board of directors shall be three years except that members of the initial board of directors elected at the special election shall determine their respective terms by lot so that the terms of one-third of the members, as nearly as may be, shall expire on the first Monday in October of each succeeding year. Vacancies on the board which occur more than ninety days prior to the next annual school election shall be filled at the next regular meeting of the board by appointment by the remaining members of the board. The member so chosen shall be a resident of the district in which the vacancy occurred and shall serve until the next annual school election, at which election a member shall be elected to fill the vacancy for the balance of the unexpired term. A vacancy shall be defined as in section 277.29. No member shall serve on the board of directors who is a member of a board of directors of a local school district or a member of an area education agency board.

Amendment effective July 1, 1975

280A.13 Directors of merged area. In each merged area, the initial board of directors elected at the special election shall organize within fifteen days following the election and may thereafter proceed with the establishment of the designated area vocational school or area community college. The board of directors shall thereafter organize on the first Monday in October of each year. Organization of the board shall be effected by the election of a president and such other officers from the board membership as board members so determine. The board of directors shall appoint a secretary and a treasurer who shall each give bond as prescribed in section 291.2 and who shall each receive such salary as shall be determined by the board. The secretary and treasurer shall perform such duties as are prescribed in chapter 291 and such additional duties as the board of directors may deem necessary. The frequency of meetings other than organizational meetings shall be as determined by the board of directors but the president or a majority of the members may call a special meeting at any time.

280A.14 Expenses prorated. All expenses incurred in electing the initial board of a merged area shall be prorated among the several county school systems included in the area, in the proportion that the value of taxable property in each county school system, or any portion thereof which is part of the merged area, bears to the total value of taxable property in the area. The county commissioner of elections responsible for conducting the election shall certify to each county board of education the amount which each board owes.

280A.15 Conduct of elections.

1. Regular elections held annually by the merged area for the election of members of the board of directors as required by section 280A.12, for the renewal of the three-fourths mill levy authorized in section 280A.22, or for any other matter authorized by law and designated for election by the board of directors of the merged area, shall be held on the date of the school election as fixed by section 277.1. The election notice shall be published as provided in section 49.53 and the election shall be conducted by the county commissioner of elections pursuant to chapters 39 to 53 and section 277.20.

2. Each candidate for member of the board of directors of a merged area shall be nominated by a petition signed by not less than fifty eligible electors of the director district from which the member is to be elected. The petition shall state the number of the director district from which the candidate seeks election, and the candidate's name and status as an eligible elector of the director district. Signers of the petition, in addition to signing their names, shall show their residence, including street and number if any, the school district in which they reside, and the date they signed the petition. Each nomination paper shall have appended to it an affidavit of an eligible elector other than the candidate in substantially the form provided in section 43.17, except as to party affiliation. The petition shall include the affidavit of the candidate being nominated, stating the candidate's name and residence, and that he or she is a candidate, is eligible for the office sought, and if elected will qualify for the office.

3. Nomination papers in behalf of candidates for member of the board of directors of a merged area shall be filed with the secretary of the board not earlier than sixty-five days nor later than five o'clock p.m. on the fortieth day prior to the election at which members of the board are to be elected. The secretary shall deliver all nomination petitions to the county commissioner of elections who is responsible under section 47.2 for conducting elections held for the merged area, not later than five o'clock p.m. on the day following the last day on which nomination petitions can be filed.

4. The votes cast in the election shall be canvassed and abstracts of the votes cast shall be certified as required by section 277.20. In each county whose commissioner of elections is responsible under section 47.2 for conducting elections held for a merged area, the county board of supervisors shall convene at ten o'clock a.m. on the last Monday in September, canvass the abstracts of votes cast and declare the results of the voting. The commissioner shall at once issue certificates of election to each person declared elected, and shall certify to the merged area board in substantially the manner prescribed by section 50.27 the result of the voting on any public question submitted to the voters of the merged area. Members elected to the board of directors of a merged area shall qualify by taking the oath of office prescribed in section 277.28.

Amendment effective July 1, 1975

280A.16 Status of merged area. A merged area formed under the provisions of this chapter shall be a body politic as a school corporation for the purpose of exercising powers granted under this chapter, and as such may sue and be sued, hold property, and exercise all the powers granted by law and such other powers as are incident to public corporations of like character and are not inconsistent with the laws of the state.

280A.17 Preparation of budget. The board of directors of each merged area shall prepare an annual budget designating the proposed expenditures for operation of the area vocational school or area community college. The board shall further designate the amounts which are to be raised by local taxation and the amounts which are to be raised by other

sources of revenue for such operation. The budget of each merged area shall be submitted to the state board no later than December 1 preceding the next fiscal year for approval. The state board shall review the proposed budget and shall, prior to January 1, either grant its approval or return the budget without approval with the comments of the state board attached thereto. Any unapproved budget shall be resubmitted to the state board for final approval. Upon approval of the budget by the state board, the board of directors shall prorate the amount to be raised by local taxation among the respective school districts, in the proportion that the value of taxable property in each school district bears to the total value of taxable property in the area. The board of directors shall certify the amount so determined to the respective county auditors and the boards of supervisors shall levy a tax sufficient to raise the amount. No tax in excess of twenty and one-fourth cents per thousand dollars of assessed value shall be levied on taxable property in a merged area for the operation of an area vocational school or area community college. Taxes collected pursuant to such levy shall be paid by the respective county treasurers to the treasurer of the merged area in the same manner that other school taxes are paid to local school districts.

It is the policy of this state that the property tax for the operation of area schools shall not in any event exceed twenty and one-fourth cents per thousand dollars of assessed value, and that the present and future costs of such operation in excess of the funds raised by such levy shall be the responsibility of the state and shall not be paid from property tax.

Amendment effective July 1, 1975

Tax limitations for the tax year of 1976-1977 not applicable for loan repayment; see 65G.A., Ch.1096, secs. 57, 61.

280A.18 Other funds received. In addition to revenue derived by tax levy, a board of directors of a merged area shall be authorized to receive and expend:

1. Federal funds made available and administered by the state board, for such purposes as may be provided by federal laws, rules and regulations.

2. Other federal funds for such purposes as may be provided by federal law, subject to the approval of the state board.

3. Tuition in accordance with section 280A.23(3).

4. State aid to be paid in accordance with the statutes which provide such aid.

5. State funds for sites and facilities made available and administered by the state board.

6. Donations and gifts which may be accepted

by the governing board and expended in accordance with the terms of the gift without compliance with the local budget law.

7. Student fees collected from students for activities, laboratory breakage, instructional materials, and other objects and purposes for which student fees other than tuition are customarily charged by colleges and universities, as provided in a schedule of fees adopted by the area board of directors. The expenditure of funds collected from students for activities shall be determined by the student government unit with administrative and board approval. Any increases in student fees for activities shall be determined by the student government unit with administrative and board approval.

280A.19 Acquisition of sites and buildings. Boards of directors of merged areas may acquire sites and erect and equip buildings for use by area vocational schools or area community colleges and may contract indebtedness and issue bonds to raise funds for such purposes.

Referred to in secs, 280A.20, 280A.21

280A.20 Payment of bonds. Taxes for the payment of bonds issued under section 280A.19 shall be levied in accordance with chapter 76. The bonds shall be payable from a fund created from the proceeds of such taxes in not more than twenty years and bear interest at a rate not exceeding seven percent per annum, and shall be of such form as the board issuing the bonds shall by resolution provide. Any indebtedness incurred shall not be considered an indebtedness incurred for general and ordinary purposes.

280A.21 Election to incur indebtedness. No indebtedness shall be incurred under section 280A.19 until authorized by an election. A proposition to incur indebtedness and issue bonds for area vocational school or area community college purposes shall be deemed carried in a merged area if approved by a sixty percent majority of all voters voting on the proposition in the area.

280A.22 Additional tax. In addition to the tax authorized under section 280A.17, the voters in any merged area may at the annual school election vote a tax not exceeding twenty and one-fourth cents per thousand dollars of assessed value in any one year for a period not to exceed five years for the purchase of grounds, construction of buildings, payment of debts contracted for the construction of buildings, purchase of buildings and equipment for buildings, and the acquisition of libraries, and for the purpose of maintaining, remodeling, improving, or expanding the area vocational school or area community college of the merged area which tax shall be collected by the county treasurers and remitted to the treasurer of the merged area as other taxes are collected and remitted, and the proceeds of said tax shall be deposited in a separate and distinct fund to be known as the voted tax fund, to be paid out upon warrants drawn by the president and secretary of the board of directors of the merged area district for the payment of costs incurred in providing the school facilities for which the tax was voted.

In order to make immediately available to the merged area the proceeds of the voted tax hereinbefore authorized to be levied, the board of directors of any such merged area is hereby authorized, without the necessity for any further election, to borrow money and enter into loan agreements in anticipation of the collection of such tax, and such board shall, by resolution, provide for the levy of an annual tax, within the limits of the special voted tax hereinbefore authorized, sufficient to pay the amount of any such loan and the interest thereon to maturity as the same becomes due. A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed with the county auditors of the counties in which such merged area is located, and the filing thereof shall make it a duty of such auditors to enter annually this levy for collection until funds are realized to repay the loan and interest thereon in full. Said loan must mature within the number of years for which the tax has been voted and shall bear interest at a rate or rates not exceeding seven percent per annum. Any loan agreement entered into pursuant to authority herein contained shall be in such form as the board of directors shall by resolution provide and the loan shall be payable as to both principal and interest from the proceeds of the annual levy of the voted tax hereinbefore authorized, or so much thereof as will be sufficient to pay the loan and interest thereon. In furtherance of the foregoing the board of directors of such merged area may, with or without notice, negotiate and enter into a loan agreement or agreements with any bank, investment banker, trust company, insurance company, or group thereof, whereunder the borrowing of the necessary funds may be assured and consummated. The proceeds of such loan shall be deposited in a special fund, to be kept separate and apart from all other funds of the merged area, and shall be paid out upon warrants drawn by the president and secretary of the board of directors to pay the cost of acquiring the school facilities for which the tax was voted.

Nothing herein contained shall be construed to limit the authority of the board of directors to levy the full amount of the voted tax, but if and to whatever extent said tax is levied in any year in excess of the amount of principal and interest falling due in such year under any loan agreement, the first available proceeds thereof, to an amount sufficient to meet maturing installments of principal and interest under the loan agreement, shall be paid into the sinking fund for such loan before any of such taxes are otherwise made available to the merged area for other school purposes, and the amount required to be annually set aside to pay the principal of and interest on the money borrowed under such loan agreement shall constitute a first charge upon all of the proceeds of such annual special voted tax, which tax shall be pledged to pay said loan and the interest thereon.

This law shall be construed as supplemental and in addition to existing statutory authority and as providing an independent method of financing the cost of acquiring school facilities for which a tax has been voted under this section and for the borrowing of money and execution of loan agreements in connection therewith and shall not be construed as subject to the provisions of any other law. The fact that a merged area may have previously borrowed money and entered into loan agreements under authority herein contained shall not prevent such merged area from borrowing additional money and entering into further loan agreements provided that the aggregate of the amount payable under all of such loan agreements does not exceed the proceeds of the voted tax. All acts and proceedings heretofore taken by the board of directors or by any official of any merged area for the exercise of any of the powers granted by this section are hereby legalized and validated in all respects.

Tax limitations not applicable to levies beyond 1975 up to 1 1/8 mills.

280A.23 Authority of area directors. The board of directors of each area vocational school or area community college shall:

1974

1. Determine the curriculum to be offered in such school or college subject to approval of the state board. If an existing private educational or vocational institution within the merged area has facilities and curriculum of adequate size and quality which would duplicate the functions of the area school, the board of directors shall discuss with the institution the possibility of entering into contracts to have the existing institution offer facilities and curriculum to students of the merged area. The board of directors shall consider any proposals submitted by the private institution for providing such facilities and curriculum. The board of directors may enter into such contracts. In approving curriculum, the state board shall ascertain that all courses and programs submitted for approval are needed and that the curriculum being offered by an area school does not duplicate programs provided by existing public or private facilities in the area. In determining whether duplication would actually exist, the state board shall consider the needs of the area and consider whether the proposed programs are competitive as to size, quality, tuition, purposes, and area coverage with existing public and private educational or vocational institutions within the merged area.

2. Change boundaries of director districts in merged areas after each decennial census or change in boundaries of the merged area to compensate for changes in population if such population changes have taken place.

3. Have authority to determine tuition rates for instruction. Tuition for residents of Iowa shall not exceed the lowest tuition rate per semester, or the equivalent, charged by an institution of higher education under the state board of regents for a full-time resident student. However, if a local school district pays tuition for a resident pupil of high school age, the limitation on tuition for residents of lowa shall not apply, the amount of tuition shall be determined by the board of directors of the area school with the consent of the local school board. and the pupil shall not be included in the full-time equivalent enrollment of the area school for the purpose of computing general aid to the area school. Tuition for nonresidents of Iowa shall be not less than one hundred fifty percent and not more than two hundred percent of the tuition established for residents of Iowa. Tuition for resident or nonresident students may be set at a higher figure with the approval of the state board. A lower tuition for nonresidents may be permitted under a reciprocal tuition agreement between a merged area and an educational institution in another state, if the agreement is approved by the state board.

4. Have the powers and duties with respect to such schools and colleges, not otherwise provided in this chapter, which are prescribed for boards of directors of local school districts by chapter 279.

5. Have the power to enter into contracts and take other necessary action to insure a sufficient curriculum and efficient operation and management of the school or college and maintain and protect the physical plant, equipment, and other property of the school or college.

6. Establish policy and make rules, not inconsistent with law and administrative rules, regulations, and policies of the state board, for its own government and that of the administrative, teaching, and other personnel, and the students of the school or college, and aid in the enforcement of such laws, rules, and regulations.

7. Have authority to sell any article resulting from any vocational program or course offered at an area vocational school or area community college. Governmental agencies and governmental subdivisions of the state within the merged areas shall be given preference in the purchase of such articles. All revenue received from the sale of any article shall be credited to the funds of the board of the merged area.

8. With the consent of the inventor, and in the discretion of the board, secure letters patent or copyright on inventions of students, instructors, and

officials of any vocational school or community college of the merged area, or take assignment of such letters patent or copyright and make all necessary expenditures in regard thereto. Letters patent or copyright on inventions when so secured shall be the property of the board of the merged area and the royalties and earnings thereon shall be credited to the funds of the board.

9. The area board, when setting the salary of the area superintendent, shall take into consideration the salaries of administrators of educational institutions in the area, and the enrollment of the area schools; the salary range shall be from seventeen thousand dollars to twenty-seven thousand five hundred dollars per annum including additional benefits, over and above the additional benefits given all full-time employees. The superintendent shall not be required to hold any teacher's certificate.

10. At the request of an employee through contractual agreement the board may arrange for the purchase of group or individual annuity contracts for any of its respective employees from any company the employee may choose that is authorized to do business in this state and through an lowa-licensed insurance agent that the employee may select, for retirement or other purposes and may make payroll deductions in accordance with such arrangements for the purpose of paying the entire premium due and to become due under such contract. The deductions shall be made in the manner which will qualify the annuity premiums for the benefits afforded under section 403b of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 and amendments thereto. The employee's rights under such annuity contract shall be nonforfeitable except for the failure to pay premiums.

Whenever an existing tax-sheltered annuity contract is to be replaced by a new contract the agent or representative of the company shall submit a letter of intent to the company being replaced, to the insurance commissioner of the state of Iowa, and to his own company at least thirty days prior to any action by registered mail. This letter of intent shall contain the policy number and description of the contract being replaced and a description of the replacement contract.

8

280A.24 Area community college. The board of directors of a merged area initially organized for the establishment of, and which is operating, an area vocational school may with the approval of the state board expand the curriculum of the school to qualify as an area community college. The state board shall upon approval officially classify the school as an area community college.

The standard academic workload for an instructor in arts and science courses shall be fifteen credit hours per school term, and the maximum academic workload for any instructor shall be sixteen credit hours per school term, for classes taught during the normal school day. In addition thereto, any faculty member may teach a course or courses at times other than usual day-course hours, or on days other than the regular school week, involving total class instruction time equivalent to not more than a three-credit-hour course. The total workload for such instructors shall not exceed the equivalent of eighteen credit hours per school term.

280A.25 Power of state board. The state board shall:

1. Have authority to designate any vocational school or community college as an "area vocational education school" within the meaning of, and for the purpose of administering, the Act of Congress designated the "Vocational Education Act of 1963". No vocational school or community college shall be so designated by the board for the expenditure of funds under section 35c, subsection "a", paragraph 5, Title 20, U.S.C., which has not been designated and classified as an area vocational school or area community college by the state board.

1974

2. Change boundaries of director districts in any merged area when the board of directors of the area fails to change boundaries as required under section 280A.23, subsection 2.

3. Change boundaries of merged areas to take into account mergers of local school districts and changes in boundaries of local school districts, when necessary to maintain the policy of this chapter that no local school district shall be a part of more than one merged area. The state board may also make other changes in boundaries of merged areas with the approval of the board of directors of each merged area affected by the change. At any time when the boundaries of a merged area are so changed, the state board may authorize the board of directors of the merged area to levy additional taxes upon the property within the merged area, or any part thereof, and distribute the same so that all parts of the merged area are paying their share toward the support of the school or college.

4. Administer, allocate, and disburse any federal or state funds made available to pay any portion of the cost of acquiring sites for and constructing, acquiring, or remodeling facilities for area vocational schools or area community colleges, and establish priorities for the use of such funds.

5. Administer, allocate, and disburse any federal or state funds available to pay any portion of the operating costs of area vocational schools or area community colleges.

6. Approve, in such manner as it may prescribe, sites and buildings to be acquired, erected, or remodeled for use by area vocational schools or area community colleges.

7. Have authority to adopt such administrative rules and regulations as it deems necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter.

8. Have the power to enter into contracts with local school boards within the area that have and maintain a technical or vocational high school and with private schools or colleges in the co-operative or merged areas to provide courses or programs of study in addition to or as a part of the curriculum made available in the community college or area vocational schools.

9. Make arrangements with boards of merged areas and local school districts to permit students attending high school to participate in vocational-technical programs and obtain credit for such participation for application toward the completion of a high school diploma. The granting of such credit shall be subject to the approval of the state board.

10. Prescribe a uniform system of accounting for area schools.

280A.26 Former community or junior colleges. Any local school district which operated a community or junior college for any period between September 1, 1964 and July 4, 1965, may continue to operate such college. Existing public community or junior colleges may be converted into area vocational schools or area community colleges in the manner provided in this chapter. In addition, an existing public community or junior college may be converted into an area vocational school or area community college by agreement between the board of directors of the local school district operating the community or junior college and the board of directors of the merged area. Such agreement shall be effective only if approved by the state board of public instruction. Such agreement shall provide for reasonable compensation to such local school district.

Where the board of any local school district

280A.26, AREA SCHOOLS

operating a community or junior college and the board of directors of the merged areas are not in agreement on the reasonable value of any public community or junior college which is to be converted, the matters of disagreement shall be decided by three disinterested arbitrators; one selected by the local board, one by the board of the merged area, and one by the two arbitrators so selected. The decision of the arbitrators shall be made in writing and a copy of the decision shall be filed with the secretary of the board of the merged area and the secretary of the local board. Any party to the proceedings may appeal therefrom to the district court by serving notice thereof within twenty days after the decision is filed. Such appeal shall be tried in equity and a decree entered determining the entire matter. The decree so entered shall be final.

280A.27 Area schools branch in department. There shall be an area schools branch within the state department of public instruction. The branch shall exercise the powers and perform the duties conferred by law upon the department with respect to area vocational schools and area and public community and junior colleges.

280A.28 Assistant superintendent of branch. Repealed by Ch. 1106 (H.F. 1359), sec. 3, 63 G.A. (2).

280A.29 Advisory committee. There is further established a state advisory committee on area schools which shall consist of nine members. Members of the committee shall be appointed by the governor and shall include:

1. A member of the state board of regents.

2. A member of the state advisory committee for vocational education.

3. A member to represent private universities and colleges.

4. A member to represent industry and management.

5. A member to represent associations which have been established for the purpose of furthering the education and training of individuals with academic, socio-economic, and other handicaps.

6. A member to represent local school districts which offer programs of vocational education.

- 7. Two members to represent the general public.
- 8. A member to represent labor.

280A.30 Members terms. The members of the state advisory committee shall serve for terms of four years but the nine initial appointees shall serve as follows: Four members shall serve from the date of appointment until June 30, 1967, and five members

shall serve from the date of the appointment until June 30, 1969. Any vacancy on the committee shall be filled for the unexpired term of the vacancy in the same manner as the original appointment. Members of the committee shall serve without compensation but shall be allowed actual and necessary expenses while engaged in official duties.

280A.31 Meetings. Prior to August 1 of each year, the advisory committee shall meet and organize. The committee shall annually elect a chairman and such other officers as committee members deem necessary. The chairman of the committee shall be responsible for calling meetings of the advisory committee. Advisory committee members shall meet at least four times a year and at such other times as the chairman or the state superintendent deems necessary. The state board shall meet with the advisory committee at least quarterly.

280A.32 Advice. The advisory committee shall advise the state board on the establishment of area community colleges, on the adoption of standards for area and public community and junior colleges, on faculty salary schedules and other matters relating to area and public community and junior colleges under the jurisdiction of the state board and state superintendent.

280A.33 Joint action with board of regents. 1. Approval standards, except as hereinafter provided, for area and public community and junior colleges shall be initiated by the area schools branch of the department and submitted to the state board of public instruction and the state board of regents, through the state superintendent of public instruction, for joint consideration and adoption. No proposed approval standard shall be adopted by the boards until the standard has been submitted to the advisory committee created by this chapter and its recommendations thereon obtained.

2. Approval standards for area vocational schools and for vocational programs and courses offered by area community colleges shall be initiated by the area schools branch and submitted to the state board of public instruction through the state superintendent of public instruction, for consideration and adoption. No such proposed approval standard shall be adopted by the state board until the standard has been submitted to the advisory committee created by this chapter and to the advisory committee created by chapter 258 and their recommendations thereon obtained.

3. For purposes of this section, "approval standards" shall include standards for administration, qualifications and assignment of personnel,

curriculum, facilities and sites, requirements for awarding of diplomas and other evidence of educational achievement, guidance and counseling, instruction, instructional materials, maintenance, and library.

4. Approval standards shall be subject to the provisions of chapter 17A. In addition, approval standards shall be reported by the state board to the general assembly within twenty days after the commencement of a regular legislative session. No area community college or area vocational school shall be removed from the approved list for failure to comply with the approval standards until at least one hundred twenty days have elapsed following the reporting of such standards to the general assembly as provided in this section.

5. The department of public instruction shall supervise and evaluate the educational program in the several area community colleges and area vocational schools of the state for the purpose of the improvement and approval of such institutions.

6. The superintendent of public instruction shall make recommendations and suggestions in writing to each area community college and area vocational school if the department of public instruction determines, after due investigation, that deficiencies exist.

7. The state board shall maintain a list of approved area community colleges and area vocational schools, and it shall remove from the approved list for cause, after due investigation and notice, any area community college or area vocational school which fails to comply with the approval standards. An area community college or area vocational school which is removed from the approved list pursuant to this section shall be ineligible to receive state financial aid during the period of such removal. The state board shall allow a reasonable period of time, which shall be at least one year, for compliance with approval standards if an area community college or area vocational school is making a good faith effort and substantial progress toward full compliance or if failure to comply is due to factors beyond the control of the board of directors of the merged area operating the institution. In allowing time for compliance, the board shall follow consistent policies, taking into account the circumstances of each case. The reasonable period of time for compliance may be, but need not be, given prior to the one-year notice requirement that is provided in this section.

8. The department of public instruction shall give any area community college or area vocational school which is to be removed from the approved list at least one year's notice. The notice shall be given by registered or certified mail addressed to the superintendent of the area community college or area vocational school and shall specify the reasons for removal. The notice shall also be sent by ordinary mail to each member of the board of directors of the area community college or area vocational school, and to the news media which serve the merged area where the school is located; but any good faith error or failure to comply with this sentence shall not affect the validity of any action by the state board. If, during the year, the area community college or area vocational school remedies the reasons for removal and satisfies the state board that it will thereafter comply with the laws and approval standards the state board shall continue the area community college or area vocational school on the approved list and shall transmit to the area community college or area vocational school notice of the action by registered or certified mail.

9. At any time during the year after notice is given, the board of directors of the area community college or area vocational school may request a public hearing before the state board of public instruction, by mailing a written request to the superintendent of public instruction by registered or certified mail. The president of the state board shall promptly set a time and place for the public hearing, which shall be either in Des Moines or in the affected merged area. At least thirty days' notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be given by registered or certified mail addressed to the superintendent of the area community college or area vocational school. At least ten days before the hearing, notice of the time and place of the hearing and the reasons for removal shall also be published by the state department in a newspaper of general circulation in the merged area where the area community college or area vocational school is located.

10. At the hearing the area community college or area vocational school may be represented by counsel and may present evidence. The state board may provide for the hearing to be recorded or reported. If requested by the area community college or area vocational school at least ten days before the hearing, the state board shall provide for the hearing to be recorded or reported at the expense of the area community college or area vocational school, using any reasonable method specified by the area community college or area vocational school. Within ten days after the hearing, the state board shall render its written decision, signed by a majority of its members, and shall affirm, modify, or vacate the action or proposed action to remove the area community college or area vocational school from the approved list.

280A.34 Certain uses of funds prohibited. Funds obtained pursuant to section 280A.17; subsections 3, 4, and 5 of section 280A.18; section 280A.19; and section 280A.22, shall not be used for the construction or maintenance of athletic buildings or grounds.

1974

280A.35, AREA SCHOOLS

280A.35 Limitation on land. A merged area may not purchase land which will increase the aggregate of land owned by such area, excluding land which has been or may be acquired by donation or gift, or more than three hundred twenty acres. Such limitation shall not apply to merged areas owning more than three hundred twenty acres, excluding land acquired by donation or gift, prior to January 1, 1969.

With the approval of the state board, the board of directors of any merged area at any time may sell any land in excess of one hundred sixty acres owned by the merged area, and no election shall be necessary in connection with such sale notwithstanding any other provisions of law. The proceeds of the sale may be used for any of the purposes stated in section 280A.22. This paragraph is in addition to any authority under other provisions of law.

280A.36 Faculty development. The administration of the college shall encourage the continued development of faculty potential by: (1) Regularly stimulating department chairmen or heads to meet their responsibilities in this regard; (2) lightening the teaching loads of first-year instructors whose course preparation and in-service training demand it; (3) stimulating curricular evaluation; and (4) encouraging the development of an atmosphere in which the faculty brings a wide range of ideas and experiences to the students, each other, and the community.

This section was enacted by the General Assembly as an amendment to a departmental rule, no. 5.4(8) of the Department of Public Instruction.

280A.37 Membership in association of school boards. Boards of directors of merged area schools may pay, out of funds available to them, reasonable annual dues to an Iowa association of school boards.

Membership in such an lowa association of school boards shall be limited to those duly elected members of boards of directors of area schools.

280A.38 Lease agreements for space. The board of directors may, with the approval of the state board, enter into lease agreements, with or without purchase options, not to exceed twenty years in duration, for the leasing or rental of buildings for use basically as classrooms, laboratories, shops, libraries and study halls for vocational school or community college purposes, and pay for the same with funds acquired pursuant to section 280A.17, section 280A.18, and section 280A.22.

Such agreements may include the leasing of existing buildings on public or private property,

buildings to be constructed upon real estate owned by the area school, or buildings to be placed upon real estate owned by the area school.

Before entering into a lease agreement with a purchase option for a building to be constructed, or placed, upon real estate owned by the area school, the board shall first adopt plans and specifications for the proposed building which it considers suitable for the intended use, and the board shall also adopt the proposed terms of the lease agreement and purchase option. Upon obtaining the approval of the state board, the board shall invite bids thereon, by advertisement published once each week for two consecutive weeks in the county where the building is to be located. Such lease agreement shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder, or the board may reject all bids and readvertise for new bids.

280A.39 Combining merged areas--election. Any merged area may combine with any adjacent merged area after a favorable vote by the electors of each of the areas involved. If the boards of directors of two or more merged areas agree to a combination, the question shall be submitted to the electors of each area at a special election to be held on the same day in each area. The special election shall not be held within thirty days of any general election. Prior to the special election, the board of each merged area shall notify the county commissioner of elections of the county in which the greatest proportion of the merged area's taxable base is located who shall publish notice of the election at least three times, no oftener than once a week, in one or more newspapers of general circulation within the merged area. The two respective county commissioners of elections shall conduct the election pursuant to the provisions of chapters 39 to 53. The votes cast in the election shall be canvassed by the county board of supervisors and the county commissioners of elections who conducted the election shall certify the results to the board of directors of each merged area.

If the vote is favorable in each merged area, the boards of each area shall proceed to transfer the assets, liabilities, and facilities of the areas to the combined merged area, and shall serve as the acting

280A.40 Area vocational school attendance center. Any merged area shall provide an area vocational school attendance center within a county of the merged area which contains a city of fifty thousand population or more as determined by the most recent federal decennial census.

CHAPTER 286A

GENERAL AID TO SCHOOLS

286A.1 Area vocational schools, community and junior colleges.

286A.2 Repealed.

- 286A.3 Basis of aid--standards for junior colleges.
- 286A.4 Determination.
- 286A.5 Information furnished by school district. 286A.6 Rules.

286A.7 Repealed.
286A.8 General aid to junior or community colleges.
286A.9 Merged area schools general aid.
286A.10 Aid paid quarterly.
286A.11 Plan for allocation of remaining funds.
286A.12 Uniform accounting system.

(Editor's note: Incident to the creation of the new form of school aid under the title, "Tax Equalization", which appears at Chapter 442, the 62nd General Assembly repealed those portions of Chapter 286A relating to school districts in general effective January 1, 1968. However, Chapter 286A also deals with aid to merged areas and to districts operating junior colleges, and its provisions relating thereto, as amended by the 62nd General Assembly, continue in force. The amended sections which apply to merged areas and junior colleges are set forth below. Sections 286A.3 and 286A.6 were neither repealed nor amended by the 62nd General Assembly.)

286A.1 Area vocational schools, community and junior colleges. The several merged areas operating area vocational schools or community colleges and the several school districts operating junior colleges or community colleges in the state of Iowa shall be entitled to receive financial aid from the state in the manner and amount as provided in this chapter.

286A.2 Repealed.

286A.3 Basis of aid---standards for junior colleges. General school aid shall be distributed under this chapter on the basis provided in section 286A.4.

Approval standards for public community and junior colleges shall be established and approved as prescribed in section 280A.33, with said standards to be issued and enforced by the state department of public instruction. Eligibility for receipt of state aid for public community and junior colleges shall be determined by the state board of public instruction and the state board of regents. No aid shall be paid to a public community or junior college unless such college meets approval standards.

286A.4 Determination. The general school aid funds allocated to each district shall be determined as follows: Multiply one dollar and thirty cents by the number of students for which the district pays tuition for such students to attend an area vocational technical high school or program which has been established and approved under the provisions of

chapter 258. Multiply this product by the actual number of days that the vocational technical school was officially in session, not to exceed one hundred eighty days. For any district which has an area vocational technical high school or program established and approved under the provisions of chapter 258, multiply one dollar and fifty cents by the number of full-time day students who have graduated from high school or who are beyond twenty-one years of age and are tuition students. Multiply this product by the actual number of days that the school was officially in session, not to exceed one hundred eighty days. A school district, in computing the tuition to charge such a student, shall deduct the amount of general aid received for such student from the regular tuition for such student.

286A.5 Information furnished by school district. At the close of each school year, but not later than July 5, the local district or merged area school shall supply to the state department of public instruction the information required for calculation of the amount reimbursable to the district for elementary and secondary school. For any day student who has been enrolled on a less than a full school-day basis, the reimbursement shall be calculated proportionately to the portion for which he is enrolled as shall be determined by the state department of public instruction. For school districts operating a junior college or community college, the aid to the district for such college shall be separately

1974

286A.5, GENERAL AID

appropriated, calculated, prorated when necessary, and paid as hereinafter provided in sections 286A.8 to 286A.10. Forms for reporting information to calculate aid for elementary and secondary school purposes shall be supplied by the state department of public instruction to each school district not later than June 1. On or before August 1, the state department of public instruction shall furnish to the state comptroller estimates of the amount reimbursable for the year to each school district for general aid for elementary and secondary school purposes and upon said estimates the state comptroller shall, on or about August 1, make payment of the first half of the annual amount appropriated for such general aid. After all such claims have been calculated for the year and validated for accuracy, the state department of public instruction shall certify the same to the state comptroller prior to February 1. On or about February 1, the state comptroller shall make payment to the school districts, of the balance of the amount appropriated for such general aid, which, when taken with the first half payment, conforms to the amount of full year reimbursement due each school district as then validated and certified by the state department of public instruction. In the event that the amount appropriated for reimbursement of the school districts for such purposes is insufficient to pay in full the amounts to each of the school districts or merged areas, then the amount of each payment shall be reduced by the state comptroller in the ratio that the total respective funds appropriated and available for such aid bears to the respective total amounts certified for reimbursement. All funds received or to be received under the provisions of this chapter shall be taken into account and considered by each school district or merged area when estimating the amount required for the general fund.

286A.6 Rules. The superintendent of public instruction, subject to the approval of the state board of public instruction, is hereby authorized to adopt such rules and definitions of terms as are necessary and proper for the administration of this chapter. The necessary expenses incurred by the department of public instruction in the administration of this chapter may be paid from the appropriation therefor. When such conditions as unnatural weather hazards, bad roads, epidemics, and the like, occur to such an extent as to penalize any district, the superintendent of public instruction can adjust the formula by taking the average of several months' attendance in lieu of the months affected by such epidemics or hazards.

286A.7 Repealed.

286A.8 General aid to junior or community

colleges. School districts operating a junior or community college shall be entitled to general school aid therefor as follows: Multiply one dollar by the average daily enrollment of the students who are residents of such school district carrying twelve or more semester hours of work plus the full-time equivalent of resident students carrying less than twelve semester hours of work. Multiply two dollars and twenty-five cents by the average daily enrollment of students who are nonresidents of the district carrying twelve or more semester hours of work plus the full-time equivalent of nonresident students carrying less than twelve semester hours of work Multiply the sum of these products by the actual number of days school was officially in session, not to exceed one hundred eighty days. For the purposes of this section, "work" means subjects or courses; for which credit may be earned and applied toward fulfillment of the requirements for a certificate, diploma, or degree; and which are approved by the state department of public instruction for state aid.

286A.9 Merged area schools general aid. Merged areas operating area schools shall be entitled to general school aid. Each merged area shall be entitled to two dollars and twenty-five cents per day for the full-time equivalent enrollment of students who are residents of the state. The total amount of state aid allocated to each area shall be computed by the following formula:

State aid = Full-time equivalent

enrollment X 180 days X \$2.25.

The amount appropriated for general state aid for the fiscal year each year, shall first be allocated to each merged area, in accordance with the above formula, on the basis of its reimbursable full-time equivalent enrollment for the previous school year. Any amount remaining shall be allocated to each merged area as provided in sections 286A.11 and 286A.12. Any course or program, the direct operational costs of which are entirely paid by federal, state, or other governmental agencies or private subsidy, or both, shall not be eligible for reimbursement.

For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply:

1. "Full-time equivalent enrollment" means the quotient of the total number of reimbursable hours carried by residents of the state attending a single area school, divided by five hundred forty, which represents fifteen reimbursable hours per week for a period of thirty-six weeks.

2. "Reimbursable hour" means any of the following:

a. One contact hour of lecture in an approved course in arts and science or vocational-technical

education. A contact hour of lecture is one that requires significant outside preparation.

b. Two contact hours of laboratory in an approved course in arts and science or vocational-technical education.

c. Two contact hours in an approved course of adult education that is eligible for general state aid, except that basic adult education, high school completion, and college credit courses that qualify as lecture courses will be reimbursed on a one contact hour basis. Courses dealing with recreation, hobbies, casual cultural, or self-enjoyment subjects shall not be eligible for reimbursement.

286A.10 Aid paid quarterly. Payment of the aid provided in sections 286A.8 and 286A.9 shall be made to each merged area, and to each school district operating a junior or community college on a quarterly basis, at the end of each quarter of the school year, which commences on July 1 and ends on the following June 30, in the following manner:

1. At the close of each school year but not later than July 5, the board of directors of each such school district or merged area shall certify to the state department of necessary to compute the aid entitlement, as hereinabove provided, for the school year ending on June 30 immediately preceding the said July 1. In addition thereto, each said board shall certify to the state department, its best bona fide estimate of what the same data and information will be for the school year that commences upon the said July 1, and ends on the following June 30.

1974

2. On the basis of estimates certified, as provided in subsection one hereof, thirty percent of the anticipated aid entitlement for each such school district or merged area shall be paid to the district or merged area at the end of each of the first three quarters of the school year for which said estimates have been certified. The aid payment for the fourth quarter shall be equal to the difference between the aggregate aid payments for the first three quarters and the total amount of aid entitlement computed on the basis of the actual information required for calculation, as certified in the following July, plus or minus such pro rata amount as may be necessary to make the aggregate total of general school aid paid to all such school districts or merged areas, as the case may be, for the said year equal to the respective amounts of aid funds appropriated for payment to such districts or areas in the said year.

3. Forms for the purpose of reporting the information and estimates required under subsection one hereof shall be supplied by the state department. After quarterly payments have been calculated they shall be certified to the state comptroller for payment. Such certification shall be made to the comptroller on or about August 1, November 1, February 1, and May 1 for aid payable for the preceding quarter. The comptroller shall pay the quarterly amounts so certified forthwith.

286A.11 Plan for allocation of remaining funds. The superintendent of public instruction, with the advice and participation of an advisory committee, shall submit a plan to the state comptroller for the allocation of any funds remaining after fulfilling the requirements of section 286A.9.

For the purpose of this section, the "advisory committee" shall consist of one board member from each merged area, to be appointed by each merged area board at its first meeting in July of each year.

286A.12 Uniform accounting system. The superintendent of public instruction shall establish a uniform accounting system for area schools subject to the approval of the auditor of state. The accounting system shall provide for crediting all funds received in the form of federal aid, state aid, tuition, and miscellaneous fees to four separate accounts, as follows:

- 1. Arts and science education.
- 2. Vocational-technical education.
- 3. General adult education.
- 4. Co-operative programs or services.

All expenditures shall be charged to the appropriate accounts. No funds shall be transferred from one account to another without the approval of the superintendent of public instruction, and notification of all such transfers shall be given to the state comptroller. The accounting system of each area school shall be audited annually by the auditor of state. II

DEPARTMENTAL RULES FOR AREA VOCATIONAL SCHOOLS AND COMMUNITY COLLEGES

AREA VOCATIONAL SCHOOLS AND COMMUNITY COLLEGES

5.2 Administration.

5.3 Faculty.

- 5.4 Curriculum and evaluation.
- 5.5 Library or learning resource center.
- 5.6 Student services.
- 5.7 Laboratories, shops, equipment and supplies.
- 5.8 Physical plant.
- 5.9 Building and site approval.
- 5.10 Approval procedures.
- 5.11 Progress toward regional accreditation.
- 5.12 Standards for area schools.

Pursuant to authority conferred by section 280A.33, Code 1973, and the advice of the state advisory committee on area schools, created by chapter 280A and the state advisory council for vocational education created by chapter 258, to which we hereby certify these rules were submitted and their recommendation obtained, and for the purpose of implementing Chapter 280A, of the Code, the following approval standards for merged area vocational schools and community colleges are hereby amended by rescinding all of rules 5.2(280A), to 5.28(280A), 1973 IDR 705 to 713, and adopting in lieu thereof the following:

(Filed March 11, 1974)

5.2(280A) Administration.

5.2(1) *Policy manual.* An area school board of directors shall develop and maintain a policy manual which adequately describes the official policies of the institution.

5.2(2) Administrative staff. An area school shall develop an administrative staff appropriate to the size and the purpose of the institution and one which permits the institution to function effectively and efficiently. This administrative staff shall provide effective leadership for the major divisions of the institution including administrative services, adult and continuing education, career education, college parallel education, and student services.

5.2(3) Superintendent. An area school shall have a superintendent who shall be the executive officer of the board of directors. The executive officer shall be responsible for the operation of the area school with respect to its educational program, its faculty and student services programs, and the use of its facilities. He shall delegate to the staff all necessary administrative and supervisory responsibilities to insure an efficient operation of the institution.

5.2(4) Certification. All administrative staff except for the superintendent shall hold such certificates as required to authorize service in their respective areas of responsibility.

5.2(5) Financial records and reports. The area school shall maintain accurate financial records and make reports in the form prescribed by the state department of public instruction and other state agencies.

5.2(6) Enrollment. An area school shall meet minimum enrollment requirements if it offers instruction as authorized in chapter 280A of the Code, and if, to the satisfaction of the state board of public instruction, it is able to provide classes of reasonable economic size as needed by students, meets the needs of the students, and shows by its past and present enrollment and placement record that it meets individual and employment needs.

5.2(7) *Catalog.* The catalog shall be the official publication of the area school. It shall include accurate information on institutional policies and other information as recommended by the state department of public instruction.

5.2(8) Admission requirements.

a. Postsecondary age students. The area school shall maintain an open-door admission policy for students of post secondary age. This admission policy shall recognize that students should demonstrate a reasonable prospect for success in the program in which admitted. Applicants who cannot demonstrate a reasonable prospect for success in the program for which they apply should be assisted to enroll in courses where deficiencies may be remedied or into other programs appropriate to the individual's preparation and objectives.

b. *High school age students*. High school age students who can be better served by area school programs may be authorized to undertake such work with the cooperative approval of the area school administration and the administration of the local school district.

5.2(9) School year. The length of the school year of the area school shall provide for the effective use of the physical plant and include a minimum of 48 weeks of operation. The school year may consist of: Two semester terms and one summer term, three trimester terms, or four quarter terms. An area school may use any one or more of the three school years identified above or may offer instruction in units of length keyed to the identified scope and depth of the instructional content.

5.2(10) Graduation requirements. Graduation from an area school shall be certified by the issuance of appropriate recognition indicating the type of program the student has completed.

a. Associate in arts or an associate in science. The degree issued to a person who has satisfied curricular requirements that consist of content equivalent to a two-year college parallel curriculum shall certify that its recipient is either an associate in arts or an associate in science.

b. Associate in applied arts or an associate in applied science. The degree issued to a person having satisfied curricular requirements and demonstrated competence for employment in the occupational field for which the program was designed shall certify that its recipient is either an associate in applied arts or an associate in applied science. Typically, these degrees apply to occupations requiring significant amounts of applied scientific and mathematical knowledge or occupations in which the individual will work in direct support of a professional.

c. Associate in general studies. The degree issued to a person who has satisfied the curricular requirements of a two-year program other than set forth in 5.2(10) shall certify that its recipient is an associate in general studies.

d. Diploma. The recognition granted to a person who has been graduated from a curriculum other than set forth in 5.2(10) but of not less than 12 weeks in length shall be a diploma.

e. Certificate. A certificate of completion may be issued to certify that a student has satisfactorily completed a course of instruction other than the above.

5.2(11) Academic records. The area school shall maintain in perpetuity for each student the complete academic record including every course attempted and grade received. These records should be kept in fire resistance storage, unless other equivalent safeguards are used, such as maintaining a duplicate file (microfilm or otherwise) in a separate building.

5.2(12) Resident policy. There shall be adopted for all area schools a uniform policy for the determination of permanent residence for tuition purpose.

5.3(280A) Faculty.

5.3(1) Certification and subject matter approval. a. Career education programs. Each instructor of a career education program shall hold a valid certificate issued by the state board of public instruction for teaching in an area school. For approval in a specific subject matter field or area each instructor in a career education program shall meet the experience and education requirements as

outlined in the state plan for vocational education.

b. College parallel programs.

(1) Instructor qualifications. Each instructor of a college parallel course shall hold a valid certificate issued by the state board of public instruction for teaching in an area school. For approval in a specific subject matter field or area each instructor shall hold a master's degree in a field of instruction from a regionally accredited graduate school. This preparation shall include six semester hours of professional preparation appropriate for community college teaching, or adequate experience in college teaching or its equivalent as evaluated by a review committee appointed by the state superintendent of public instruction shall be accepted in lieu of part or all of the required credits in professional education. Approval in a second area of instruction shall be granted to applicants who present twelve semester hours of graduate level preparation in said field from a regionally accredited graduate school.

(2) Special fields or areas of instruction. Instructors in special fields or areas including but not limited to accounting, business, developmental and remedial skills, engineering, law, law enforcement, and medicine, may be certified on the basis of two or more years of successful experience in the field or area they will instruct and the possession of the academic preparation ordinarily required for such special fields or areas.

c. Adult basic education and high school completion programs.

(1) Adult basic education and high school equivalency program. Each instructor in an adult basic education and high school equivalency program shall display to the satisfaction of the area school: interest, desire and motivation to teach the undereducated adult, evidence of proficiency in the area of instruction, and compliance with all rules established by the state board of public instruction.

(2) High school diploma program. Each instructor of high school completion classes shall be certified and approved to teach the subject in a secondary school.

d. Continuing and general adult education programs. Each instructor in an adult continuing and general education program shall display to the satisfaction of the area school: A genuine interest in teaching, evidence of proficiency in the area of instruction, and compliance with all rules established by the state board of public instruction.

e. Resource staff. These approval standards are not intended to prohibit area schools from employing resource staff in specialized areas on a part-time basis to supplement instruction in specific programs.

f. Support personnel faculty.

(1) Counseling. A counselor shall have a master's degree in counseling or in college student personnel work with an emphasis in counseling from an accredited graduate school. This preparation shall include six semester hours of professional preparation appropriate for community college teaching, or adequate experience in college teaching or its equivalent as evaluated appointed by the state superintendent of public instruction shall be accepted in lieu of part or all of the required credits in professional education. Recognition shall be given to the value of employment experience outside of education in appointing counselors to work with students.

(2) Librarian and learning resource faculty. A librarian or learning resource specialist shall hold a master's degree in this area of specialization from an accredited graduate school. An assistant librarian or assistant learning resource specialist shall hold a bachelor's degree in this area of specialization from an accredited institution. This preparation shall include six semester hours of professional preparation appropriate for community college teaching, or adequate experience in college teaching or its equivalent as evaluated by a review committee appointed by the state superintendent of public instruction shall be accepted in lieu of part or all of the required credits in professional education.

(3) Auxiliary personnel. Competent auxiliary personnel with specialized skills, including but not limited to media technicians, may be employed on the basis of demonstrated competence in a specialized skill.

5.3(2) Faculty load.

a. College parallel. The full-time teaching load of an instructor in college parallel programs shall not exceed a maximum of 16 credit hours per school term or the equivalent. An instructor may also have a teaching assignment outside of the normal school hours; provided the instructor consents to this additional assignment and the total workload does not exceed the equivalent of eighteen credit hours per school term.

b. Career education. The full-time teaching load of an instructor in career education programs shall not exceed six hours per day, and an aggregate of 30 hours per week or the equivalent. An instructor may also teach the equivalent of an additional three credit hours provided the instructor consents to this additional assignment. When the teaching assignment includes classroom subjects (nonlaboratory), consideration shall be given to establishing the teaching load more in conformity with that of paragraph "a" of this subrule.

5.3(3) Faculty organization. The faculty shall be organized in such a way as to promote communication among administration, faculty and students and to encourage faculty participation in the development of the curriculum, instructional procedures, general policies, and such other matters as are appropriate.

5.3(4) Faculty development. Each area school shall develop and implement a plan for the continued development of faculty and administrative proficiency consistent with the provisions of section 280A.36 of the Code. For purposes of this standard, administrators shall be regarded as being members of the faculty.

5.4(280A) Curriculum and evaluation.

5.4(1) College parallel.

a. This program shall offer courses that are the equivalent of the first two years of a baccalaureate program and may also include: Such courses as may be necessary to develop skills that are prerequisite to other courses and objectives; and specialized courses required to provide career options within the college parallel program. A follow-up of students terminating shall be conducted to determine how well students have succeeded and which adjustments in the curriculum, if any, need to be made.

b. Courses of a remedial nature or prefreshman level shall not bear college transfer credit and shall be clearly identified in the college catalog and on transcripts.

5.4(2) Career Education. Instruction shall be offered in career education programs in no less than five different occupational fields as defined by the state department of public instruction. College parallel courses may be offered as needed in career education programs. The occupational fields in which instruction is offered shall be determined by merged area and geographical area needs as identified by surveys in these areas. Occupational advisory

committees shall be used to assist in developing and maintaining instructional content, including leadership development. A follow-up of students terminating shall be conducted to determine how well students have succeeded and which adjustments in the curriculum, if any, need to be made.

5.4(3) Adult education. Adult education shall be offered and may include adult basic education, adult continuing and general education, college parallel, high school completion, supplementary and preparatory career education programs, and such other programs and experiences as may be required to meet the needs of people in the merged area.

5.4(4) Programs for the handicapped. Surveys shall be conducted in each merged area to determine the educational needs of persons who, due to academic, socio-economic, or other handicaps, are prevented from succeeding in regular educational programs. These surveys would then serve as a basis for appropriate modifications in facilities, materials, and instructional arrangements. The modifications would then make it possible for those whose abilities and interests warrant it to enroll in such programs.

5.4(5) Community services. The area schools shall provide a program of community services designed to meet the needs of persons residing in the merged area. The purpose of the community service program shall be to foster agricultural, business, cultural, industrial, recreational and social development in the area.

5.4(6) Standards of work and student load.

a: College parallel.

(1) Each course which is offered for college credit and which is intended to be applied toward a baccalaureate degree shall be taught at a standard consistent with the quality and quantity of similar courses offered in regionally accredited institutions of higher learning.

(2) A full-time student in the college parallel division shall be defined as one who is taking 12 or more hours of college credit or the equivalent.

b. Career education.

(1) Each course offered in the area of career education shall be taught in the shortest practical period of time at a standard consistent with the quality and quantity of work needed to prepare the student for successful employment in the occupation for which instruction is being offered.

(2) A full-time student in career education shall be defined as one who is taking 12 or more credit hours or the equivalent in career education.

(3) Curricula in full-time career education programs shall ordinarily be offered on the basis of a workload of from 20 to 30 contact hours per week.

c. Adult education. Programs offered in adult education are designed to serve persons of post-high school age who are primarily part-time students. Such programs may include formal or informal learning experiences offered on either a credit or noncredit basis and shall be appropriately designed to meet the needs and interest of adults.

5.5(280) Library or learning resource center.

5.5(1) Facilities. Area school libraries or learning resource centers shall provide the facilities and resources needed to support the total educational program of the institution and should show evidence that the facilities and the resources are being used effectively and efficiently. Adequate consideration shall be given to the seating, comfort and setting of the facility used to house the collection.

5.5(2) Staffing. The library or learning resource center shall be adequately staffed with qualified and certified professionals and skilled nonprofessional personnel.

5.5(3) Collection. The collection of an area school shall be adequate in size and scope to serve effectively the number and variety of programs offered and the number of students enrolled. The collection shall show evidence of having been selected by faculty as well as professional library or learning resource staff and shall be kept up-to-date through a planned program of acquisition and deletion. The collection shall contain and appropriate range and number of print and nonprint materials, effectively organized and quartered in a manner which maximizes use.

5.5(4) Expenditures. The budget of the library or learning resource center shall be appropriate for the programs and services offered by the institution. New programs and new curricula shall be reflected in library or learning resource center expenditures.

5.6(280A) Student services.

5.6(1) A program of student services shall be provided to meet the needs of students in the area school. The program of student services shall include the following seven functional areas:

a. Orientation to college and career opportunities and requirements.

b. Appraisal of individual potential.

c. Consultation with students about their plans, progress and problems.

d. Participation of students in activities that supplement classroom experiences.

e. Regulation to provide an optimal climate for social and academic development.

f. Services that facilitate area school attendance through a program of financial assistance, and facilitate transition to further education or employment.

g. Organization that provides for continuing articulation, evaluation and improvement of the student services program.

5.7(280A) Laboratories, shops, equipment and supplies. Laboratories, shops, equipment and supplies comparable with that used in the occupations for which instruction is offered shall be provided in accordance with the conditions of the most recent state plan for vocational education. Similarly, college parallel courses shall be supported in a manner comparable to those conditions which prevail in standard, regionally colleges and universities in which students may wish to transfer college credits.

5.8(280A) Physical plant. The site, buildings and equipment of the area school shall be well maintained and in good repair. A consistent plan of systematic maintenance shall be in evidence. The physical plant shall be adequate in size and properly equipped for the program offered and shall conform to chapter 104A of the Code. All remodeling of existing facilities shall comply with the "American Standard Specifications for Making Building and Facilities Accessible to and Usable by the Physically Handicapped."

5.9(280A) Building and site approval.

5.9(1) Site size. All sites for area schools shall be approved by the state board of public instruction. The minimum size for an area school site shall be 80 acres for the first 100,000 in total population in the merged area plus an additional 10 acres for each additional 25,000 in population or major portion thereof. Provided, however, that the state board of public instruction may waive said requirements for good cause shown.

5.9(2) Building plans. All building plans and specifications for construction shall be submitted to the state board of public instruction for review and approval of educational adequacy.

5.9(3) Preliminary planning. Each merged area board shall present evidence of adequate planning along with the preliminary building plans and specifications. Preliminary planning includes tentative program approval, a master campus plan, written

educational specifications, site plot showing location of proposed facilities, and existing facilities, elevations and floor plans, and specifications of materials.

5.9(4) Other governmental approval. After a tentative approval has been received from the state board of public instruction, evidence shall be submitted indicating the approval by the state fire marshal and by the state department of health, when required, before final approval will be made by the state board of public instruction.

5.9(5) Parking lots. All weather and adequately lighted parking lots of adequate size to accommodate the enrollment shall be included as part of the planned construction and shall include ramps on curbs to allow persons with mobility problems easy access to the building. Special parking spaces shall be provided for handicapped students.

5.9(6) Flexibility and expansion. Evidence shall be presented to show that flexibility and expansion of the proposed construction is possible.

5.9(7) *Physically handicapped.* The facilities planned shall be accessible to and functional for the physically handicapped and shall conform to chapter 104A of the Code.

5.9(8) Adequate facilities. All administrative facilities, classrooms, laboratories and related facilities shall be educationally adequate for the purpose for which they are designed.

5.9(9) Air-conditioning. All buildings may be air-conditioned, to accommodate year-round use of such facilities except for areas where air-conditioning is impractical.

5.9(10) Library or learning resource center. A library or learning resource center shall be planned as a part of the master campus plan and space made available for library or learning resource center services within the initial construction.

5.9(II) Student center. An area of the school plan shall be provided where students may gather informally and where food is available.

5.9(12) Nonreimbursable facilities. No facility intended primarily for events for which admission may be charged nor any facility specially designed for athletic or recreational activities other than physical education, shall be constructed with state-appropriated funds.

5.10(280A) Approval procedures.

5.10(1) Procedures for first and second years of operation. Temporary approval of an area school for each of the first two years of operation shall be granted annually subject to approval by the state board of public instruction and the state board of regents upon certification by the state department of public instruction that said institution has followed prescribed procedures in getting started and that it gives promise of ultimate compliance with all standards contained herein.

During the second year of operation, the institution shall prepare a comprehensive self-study following the directions issued by the state department of public instruction.

5.10(2) Procedures after second year of operation.

a. During the third year of operation, the institution shall be visited by a team of six or more evaluators equally representing the state board of public instruction and the state board of regents and chosen by the respective boards. The chairman of the team shall be selected by the state department of public instruction. The evaluators shall spend a minimum of two days at the institution visited.

b. The chairman of the evaluation team shall submit to the state board of public instruction and the state board of regents a report, together with the institution's self-study and pertinent supplmementary materials. The report shall identify the institution's strengths and weaknesses on the basis of the state standards and shall provide a specific recommendation as to whether or not approval by the state board of public instruction and the state board of regents seems warranted. The superintendent of the institution shall have an opportunity to file supplementary statements or data. The state department of public instruction shall distribute copies of the report, the self-study, any supplementary statements or data filed by the superintendent of the institution, and related materials to the members of the state board of public instruction and the state board of regents.

c. If, after the visit by the evaluation team, the institution is given full approval by the state board of public instruction and the state board of regents, its approval shall continue, ordinarily, for a period of at least ten years contingent upon evidence that the institution is making consistent efforts to strengthen the areas in which weaknesses were noted. To provide this evidence of progress, the institution shall submit by January 1, of each year, a report of what improvements have been made and what changes are planned for the next year. To supplement and verify this annual report, representatives of the state department of public instruction shall visit each

institution at least one day each year. However, acting jointly, the state board of public instruction and the state board of regents have the discretionary authority to review the approval status of area schools and authorize such reports and evaluation visits as may be deemed necessary. On the basis of these reports and the visits of the evaluators, the state department of public instruction and the regent committee on educational relations acting jointly, shall recommend to the state board of public instruction and the state board of regents whether or not an institution's approval should be continued or changed. At the termination of the approval period, representatives of the state department of public instruction and the state board of regents shall review the institution's strengths and weaknesses and authorize either another period of approval or a visit by an evaluation team. If an evaluation visit is authorized, it shall be preceded by a self-study.

d. If, after the visit by the evaluation team, the institution is granted provision approval by the state board of public instruction and the state board of regents, the institution shall be revisited annually as provided in 5.10(2), "c", and by an evaluation team within three years after the last visit by an evaluation team to determine the extent to which the institution has made satisfactory progress in improving areas where weaknesses were noted.

On the basis of the evaluation team report, the state department of public instruction shall make a recommendation of approval status to the state board of public instruction and the state board of regents. The state board of public instruction and the state board of regents have the option of granting full approval, continue provisional approval, or denying approval.

"Provisional approval" shall mean that the institution's strengths are judged to be greater than the weaknesses and that there is a good possibility that the weaknesses can be corrected within three years or less.

5.11(280A) Progress toward regional accreditation. Each area school that has not received accreditation by the regional association is expected to demonstrate that it is making annual progress toward meeting such accreditation.

5.12(280A) Standards for area schools. All area schools are subject to the same standards with the exception that area vocational schools are not expected to offer a program equivalent to the first two years of baccalaureate college work including pre-professional education and provide the instructors, facilities and equipment for such college work.

(Effective March 11, 1974)

III APPENDIX

Listed below is a cross reference to other chapters in the Code of Iowa referred to in chapters 280A and 286A.Page numbers indicate where these portions of the statutes may be found in Code of Iowa, 1975.

Administrative Procedure Act
Time of Election and Term of Office
Elections and Officers
Publication of ballot and notice
Absent Voters Law
Affidavit to nomination papers
County commissioner of elections
Declaration of election
Maturity and Payment of Bonds
Vocational Education
Regular election
Canvassing returns
Vacancies
Directors - Powers and Duties
President, Secretary, and Treasurer of Board

